

Le Sueur County, MN

Tuesday, December 15, 2015 Board Meeting

ltem 8

5:30 p.m. Kathy Brockway, P&Z Administrator (10 minutes)

RFA-3 Conditional Use Permits

Staff Contact:

LE SUEUR COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 88 SOUTH PARK AVE. LE CENTER, MINNESOTA 56057 December 15,2015

MEMBERS PRESENT:	Don,Reak, Jeanne Doheny, Don Rynda, Chuck Retka, Shirley
	Katzenmeyer, Steve Olson, Doug Krenik, Al Gehrke, Betty Bruzek,

MEMBERS ABSENT: Pam Tietz

OTHERS PRESENT: Michelle Mettler, Kathy Brockway, Commissioner Connolly.

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 PM by Chairperson, Jeanne Doheny.

ITEM #1: LE SUN LLC, MINNEAPOLIS, MN (APPLICANT); PATRICK GREGOR, WASECA, MN (OWNER): Request that the County grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow the applicant to establish up to 5MW Solar Farm on approximately 50 acres in an Agriculture "A" District. Property is located in the Southeast 1/4 and Government Lot 6, Section 26, Waterville Township. **APPLICATION WAS TABLED AT THE NOVEMBER 12, 2015 MEETING.**

Michelle Mettler presented the power point presentation. Chuck Biesner, Sun Share was present for application.

TOWNSHIP: Notified through the application process. No comments. DNR: N/A LETTERS: none

PUBLIC COMMENT: none

Discussion was held regarding: road location change, grading on-site will get approval prior to zoning permit, conditional use permit if required for grading, excavating and filling, height of panels, drainage, work with landowner for tile locations, tile map provided, weed control, chemical used, native plantings, 2-3' in height, mow once a year, mow more than spray noxious weeds, butterfly garden, 8'3" highest set, 15' above grade at any highest point, grading to the west side of the property more than to the east, decommissioning plan, time frame, approximately 60 days for construction process, bonding, letter of credit, interconnection agreement with Excel, signage, lighting, lockable gate, fencing 6' maintenance free.

Findings by majority roll call vote:

- 1. The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminishes and impairs property values within the immediate vicinity. <u>Agreed</u>
- 2. The establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the area. <u>Agreed</u>
- 3. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other facilities have been or are being provided. <u>Agreed</u>
- 4. Adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space to serve the proposed use. <u>Agreed</u>
- 5. Adequate measures have been or will be taken to prevent and control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise and vibration, so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs and other lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result. <u>Agreed</u>

Motion was made by Doug Krenik to approve the application with the following conditions:

- 8' chain link fence;
- Apply for Conditional Use Permit for grading, excavating and filling if necessary;
- Copy of proof of interconnection agreement provided to the County;
- Stormwater Plan approved by the State prior to issuance of zoning permit;
- Bond provided to the County for decommissioning of the site.

Seconded by Al Gehrke. Motion approved. Motion carried.

ITEM #2: WINGE CONSTRUCTION, COON RAPIDS, MN, (APPLICANT); TAMARA KAPLAN, SAVAGE, MN, (OWNER): Request that the County grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow the applicant to elevate the lowest floor of an existing dwelling to meet the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation and meet FEMA general design standards in a Recreational Residential "RR" District and a Flood Plain Overlay Flood Fringe "FF" District on a Recreational Development Lake, Lake Frances. Property is located at Lot 6, Dick's Southside, Section 34, Elysian Township.

Michelle Mettler presented power point presentation. Jerry Winge, Winge Construction was present for application.

TOWNSHIP: Notified through application process. DNR: notified through the application process and several emails sent. No response LETTERS: none

PUBLIC COMMENT: none

Discussion was held regarding: raising house 32", explained the construction process, pilasters, 16x16 concrete blocks, hollow, not filled, able to hold water, install 2 sump pumps, install double drain tile, water has been an issue for years, house built in the late 60's early 70's, grade won't change, adding steps and pervious pavers for patio and sidewalk, grading, excavating and filling to meet the zoning ordinance requirements, stone added up to bottom of siding, similar to parking ramp construction, traps to keep rodents out, venting if required, timeframe as soon as possible.

Findings by majority roll call vote:

- 1. The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminishes and impairs property values within the immediate vicinity. <u>Agreed</u>
- 2. The establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the area. <u>Agreed</u>
- 3. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other facilities have been or are being provided. <u>Agreed</u>
- 4. Adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space to serve the proposed use. <u>Agreed</u>
- 5. Adequate measures have been or will be taken to prevent and control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise and vibration, so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs and other lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result. <u>Agreed</u>

Motion was made by Don Reak to approve the application as written. Seconded by Betty Bruzek Motion approved. Motion carried.

ITEM #3: CHRIS SHORT, PRIOR LAKE, MN, (APPLICANT/OWNER): Requests that the County grant an After-The-Fact Conditional Use Permit to allow grading, excavating, and filling of approximately 2441 cubic yards of material to establish a site for a walkout basement in a Recreational Residential "RR" District on a Recreational Development "RD" lake, Lake Frances. Property is located at Lot 3, Block 1, Han's Hideaway, Section 27, Elysian Township.

Michelle Mettler presented the power point presentation. Chris Short was present for application.

TOWNSHIP: Notified through the application process. DNR/LETTERS: Letter in file, No DNR violation on this property; Mike Schultz, No wetland Issues, Joshua Mankowski, LSC Resource Specialist, Elysian State Bank, and Deanna Refsteck (email) see file.

PUBLIC COMMENT: Roland Wagner, adjacent landowner, felt what was presented on the survey is not the same as what was being done, berm to the lake, Mr. Short was upfront with them from the beginning, he wants to do what is right, miscommunications, good neighbor, supports the application. Brian Barnett, Lake Francis Lake Association, Board of Directors, they are not in favor or against the application; Le Sueur County has ordinances that need to be followed, protect the lake. Lake Francis Association works hard to get information out to lakeshore owners, provides contacts for state, county, and city officials. Chris Short read an email he received from Randy Appel, not part of the record.

Discussion was held regarding: removal of material in order to get a solid foundation pad for construction of a new home, house is approximately 4000 sq. ft., area graded out is 7400 sq. ft.normal building practices to do 10% over & the entire front is driveway, hauled in sandy material, did vou do a compaction test-not sure, contractor should of known to stop-did the same on the adjacent lot 12 months ago, excessive amount of grading, length of driveway changed, turn around required, letter from the attorney states an engineered site plan was submitted for permit but the site plan was hand drawn, why didn't you build in the sloped area that would be conducive for a walkout, why not go through the appeal process with the Board of Adjustment-still an option & felt the conditional use permit process was faster, met on site with staff regarding tree removal, septic location, Michelle Mettler read Joshua Mankowski letter into the record, fees, penalties, difference in cubic yards from what the surveyor provided vs. the applicant and contractor, lengthy discussion in regards to the placement of the house on the lot, slab on grade vs. walkout, applicant would like to move forward with the project as presented, contractor should have stopped when doing the site prep due to inadequate slope for a walkout. Responsibility of Planning Commission is to abide by and enforce the zoning ordinance, dream retirement home, natural buffers, house on slab, modified 2-story, conditional use permit requirements vs. zoning permit requirements, states on zoning permit-additional grading, excavating and filling may require a conditional use permit.

Findings by majority roll call vote:

- 1. The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminishes and impairs property values within the immediate vicinity. <u>Agreed.</u>
- 2. The establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the area. <u>Agreed</u>
- 3. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other facilities have been or are being provided. <u>Agreed</u>
- 4. Adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space to serve the proposed use. <u>Agreed</u>
- 5. Adequate measures have been or will be taken to prevent and control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise and vibration, so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs and other lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result. <u>Agreed.</u>

Motion was made by Al Gehrke to approve the application with a 15' buffer strip along lakeshore. Seconded by Steve Olson. Roll Call Vote; Don Reak-Nay, Chuck Retka-Nay, Betty Bruzek-Aye, Shirley Katzenmeyer-Nay, Jeanne Doheny-Nay, Steve Olson-Aye, Al Gehrke-Aye, Don Rynda-Aye, Doug Krenik-Nay. 5-4 motion failed.

Motion was made by Doug Krenik to approve the application with Joshua Mankowski's recommendation: 541 cubic yds of material excavated for site preparation, the 170 cu yds

of material movement already done to construct the building pad and the 155 cu yds of material movement needed to complete the building pad. This approval would allow for the construction of a slab-on-grade structure.

A natural buffer is created along the shoreline and 15 feet inland from the lake to add protection and; Any future grading on site be kept to a minimum and conform to zoning ordinance requirements.

Seconded by Shirley Katzenmeyer Motion approved. Motion carried.

Motion was made by Don Rynda to approve the minutes from the November 12, 2015 meeting by Seconded by Don Reak. Motion approved. Motion carried.

Motion to adjourn meeting by Chuck Retka. Seconded by Shirley Katzenmeyer. Motion approved. Motion carried.

Meeting Adjourned.

Respectfully submitted,

Michelle Mettler, Kathy Brockway

> Tape of meeting is on file in the Le Sueur County Environmental Services Office

LE SUEUR COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION December 15, 2015

TO:LE SUEUR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERSFROM:LE SUEUR COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSIONSUBJECT:"REQUEST FOR ACTION"

The Planning Commission recommends your action on the following items:

ITEM #1: LE SUN LLC, MINNEAPOLIS, MN (APPLICANT); PATRICK GREGOR, WASECA, MN (OWNER): Request that the County grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow the applicant to establish up to 5MW Solar Farm on approximately 50 acres in an Agriculture "A" District. Property is located in the Southeast 1/4 and Government Lot 6, Section 26, Waterville Township. *APPLICATION WAS TABLED AT THE NOVEMBER 12, 2015 MEETING.*

Based on the information submitted by the applicant, as required by the Le Sueur County Zoning Ordinance, the Planning Commission developed the following findings for this request:

Therefore, the Planning Commission recommends approval of the application with the following conditions:

- 8' chain link fence;
- Apply for Conditional Use Permit for grading, excavating and filling if necessary;
- Copy of proof of interconnection agreement provided to the County;
- Stormwater Plan approved by the State prior to issuance of zoning permit;
- Bond provided to the County for decommissioning of the site.

ITEM #2: WINGE CONSTRUCTION, COON RAPIDS, MN, (APPLICANT); TAMARA KAPLAN, SAVAGE, MN, (OWNER): Request that the County grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow the applicant to elevate the lowest floor of an existing dwelling to meet the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation and meet FEMA general design standards in a Recreational Residential "RR" District and a Flood Plain Overlay Flood Fringe "FF" District on a Recreational Development Lake, Lake Frances. Property is located at Lot 6, Dick's Southside, Section 34, Elysian Township.

Based on the information submitted by the applicant, as required by the Le Sueur County Zoning Ordinance, the Planning Commission developed the following findings for this request:

Therefore, the Planning Commission recommends approval of the application as written.

ITEM #3: CHRIS SHORT, PRIOR LAKE, MN, (APPLICANT/OWNER): Requests that the County grant an After-The-Fact Conditional Use Permit to allow grading, excavating, and filling of approximately 2441 cubic yards of material to establish a site for a walkout basement in a Recreational Residential "RR" District on a Recreational Development "RD" lake, Lake Frances. Property is located at Lot 3, Block 1, Han's Hideaway, Section 27, Elysian Township.

Based on the information submitted by the applicant, as required by the Le Sueur County Zoning Ordinance, the Planning Commission developed the following findings for this request:

Therefore, the Planning Commission recommends approval of the application with the following conditions:

- 541 cubic yds of material excavated for site preparation, t
- the 170 cu yds of material movement already done to construct the building pad and
- the 155 cu yds of material movement needed to complete the building pad. This approval would allow for the construction of a slab-on-grade structure.
- A natural buffer is created along the shoreline and 15 feet inland from the lake to add protection and;
- Any future grading on site be kept to a minimum and conform to zoning ordinance requirements.

ACTION:	ITEM #1:	
	ITEM #2:	
	ITEM #3:	
DATE:		

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR'S SIGNATURE:

FINDINGS OF FACT

WHEREAS, LE SUN LLC, MINNEAPOLIS, MN (APPLICANT); PATRICK GREGOR, WASECA, MN (OWNER): has applied for a Conditional Use Permit to allow the applicant to establish up to 5MW Solar Farm on approximately 50 acres in an Agriculture "A" District. Property is located in the Southeast 1/4 and Government Lot 6, Section 26, Waterville Township.

WHEREAS, the Le Sueur County Planning and Zoning Commission held public hearings on **November 12**, 2015 and December 10,2015, in order to hear public testimony from the applicants as well as interested parties pertaining to and as provided by the Zoning Ordinance of Le Sueur County.

WHEREAS, the Le Sueur County Planning and Zoning Commission, acting as an advisory board to the Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners recommends denial/approval of the application due to the following findings:

- 1. The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminishes and impairs property values within the immediate vicinity.
- 2. The establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the area.
- 3. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other facilities have been or are being provided.
- 4. Adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space to serve the proposed use.
- 5. Adequate measures have been or will be taken to prevent and control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise and vibration, so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs and other lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result.

WHEREAS, On December 15, 2015, at their regularly scheduled meeting, the Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners ACTION the Conditional Use Permit application as requested b LE SUN LLC, MINNEAPOLIS, MN (APPLICANT); PATRICK GREGOR, WASECA, MN (OWNER).

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, the following Findings of Fact were adopted at the December 15, 2015, Le Sueur County Board meeting in order to protect the public health, safety and general welfare of the citizens of Le Sueur County.

- 1. With the imposition of appropriate conditions as stated, the conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminishes and impairs property values within the immediate vicinity.
- 2. With the imposition of appropriate conditions as stated, the establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the area.
- 3. With the imposition of appropriate conditions as stated, adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other facilities have been or are being provided.
- 4. With the imposition of appropriate conditions as stated, adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space to serve the proposed use.
- 5. With the imposition of appropriate conditions as stated, adequate measures have been or

3

will be taken to prevent and control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise and vibration, so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs and other lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners that based on the above Findings of Fact, a Conditional Use Permit Permit to allow the applicant to establish up to 5MW Solar Farm on approximately 50 acres in an Agriculture "A" District. Property is located in the Southeast 1/4 and Government Lot 6, Section 26, Waterville Township is APPROVED/DENIED.

ATTEST:

Lance Wetzel, Chairman, Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners.

Darrell Pettis, Le Sueur County Administrator

DATE:_____

FINDINGS OF FACT

WHEREAS, WINGE CONSTRUCTION, COON RAPIDS, MN, (APPLICANT); TAMARA KAPLAN, SAVAGE, MN, (OWNER): has applied for a Conditional Use Permit to allow the applicant to elevate the lowest floor of an existing dwelling to meet the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation and meet FEMA general design standards in a Recreational Residential "RR" District and a Flood Plain Overlay Flood Fringe "FF" District on a Recreational Development Lake, Lake Frances. Property is located at Lot 6, Dick's Southside, Section 34, Elysian Township.

WHEREAS, the Le Sueur County Planning and Zoning Commission held on public hearing on **December 10**, 2015, in order to hear public testimony from the applicants as well as interested parties pertaining to and as provided by the Zoning Ordinance of Le Sueur County.

WHEREAS, the Le Sueur County Planning and Zoning Commission, acting as an advisory board to the Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners recommends denial/approval of the application due to the following findings:

- 1. The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminishes and impairs property values within the immediate vicinity.
- 2. The establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the area.
- 3. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other facilities have been or are being provided.
- 4. Adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space to serve the proposed use.
- 5. Adequate measures have been or will be taken to prevent and control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise and vibration, so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs and other lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result.

WHEREAS, On December 15, 2015, at their regularly scheduled meeting, the Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners ACTION the Conditional Use Permit application as requested by WINGE CONSTRUCTION, COON RAPIDS, MN, (APPLICANT); TAMARA KAPLAN, SAVAGE, MN, (OWNER).

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, the following Findings of Fact were adopted at the December 15, 2015, Le Sueur County Board meeting in order to protect the public health, safety and general welfare of the citizens of Le Sueur County.

- 1. The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminishes and impairs property values within the immediate vicinity.
- 2. The establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the area.
- 3. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other facilities have been or are being provided.
- 4. Adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space to serve the proposed use.

5

5. Adequate measures have been or will be taken to prevent and control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise and vibration, so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs and other lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners that based on the above Findings of Fact, a Conditional Use Permit to allow the applicant to elevate the lowest floor of an existing dwelling to meet the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation and meet FEMA general design standards in a Recreational Residential "RR" District and a Flood Plain Overlay Flood Fringe "FF" District on a Recreational Development Lake, Lake Frances. Property is located at Lot 6, Dick's Southside, Section 34, Elysian Township, is APPROVED/DENIED.

ATTEST:

Lance Wetzel, Chairman, Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners.

Darrell Pettis, Le Sueur County Administrator

DATE:_____

WHEREAS, CHRIS SHORT, PRIOR LAKE, MN, (APPLICANT/OWNER): has applied for an After-the-Fact Conditional Use to allow grading, excavating, and filling of approximately 2441 cubic yards of material to establish a site for a walkout basement in a Recreational Residential "RR" District on a Recreational Development "RD" lake, Lake Frances. Property is located at Lot 3, Block 1, Han's Hideaway, Section 27, Elysian Township.

WHEREAS, the Le Sueur County Planning and Zoning Commission held on public hearing on **December 10, 2015**, in order to hear public testimony from the applicants as well as interested parties pertaining to and as provided by the Zoning Ordinance of Le Sueur County.

WHEREAS, the Le Sueur County Planning and Zoning Commission, acting as an advisory board to the Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners recommends denial/approval of the application due to the following findings:

- 1. The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminishes and impairs property values within the immediate vicinity.
- 2. The establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the area.
- 3. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other facilities have been or are being provided.
- 4. Adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space to serve the proposed use.
- 5. Adequate measures have been or will be taken to prevent and control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise and vibration, so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs and other lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result.

WHEREAS, On December 15, 2015, at their regularly scheduled meeting, the Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners ACTION the Conditional Use Permit application as requested by CHRIS SHORT, PRIOR LAKE, MN, (APPLICANT/OWNER).

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, the following Findings of Fact were adopted at the December 15, 2015 Le Sueur County Board meeting in order to protect the public health, safety and general welfare of the citizens of Le Sueur County.

- 1. With the imposition of appropriate conditions as stated, the conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminishes and impairs property values within the immediate vicinity.
- 2. With the imposition of appropriate conditions as stated, the establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the area.
- 3. With the imposition of appropriate conditions as stated, adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other facilities have been or are being provided.
- 4. With the imposition of appropriate conditions as stated, adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space to serve the proposed use.

5. With the imposition of appropriate conditions as stated, adequate measures have been or will be taken to prevent and control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise and vibration, so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs and other lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners that based on the above Findings of Fact, a Conditional Use Permit ATTEST:

Lance Wetzel, Chairman, Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners.

Darrell Pettis, Le Sueur County Administrator

DATE:_____